
 

                         

 

 

 

 

                             

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING 

 

FEBRUARY 20, 2025 

 

AGENDA PACKET 

 

1



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

AGENDA FEBRUARY 20, 2025 

MEETING AGENDA - Page 3 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. July 16, 2024 minutes – Pages 4-5

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Variance Application #VV-2025-0001, 1200 Orange Street - Pages 6-55

NEW BUSINESS 

A. Appointment of the 2025 Chairperson – Page 56
B. Approval of the 2025 meeting schedule – Pages 57-58
C. Interpretation of the Official Zoning Map – Pages 59-74

2



 

 

Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2025, 6:00 P.M. 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

AGENDA 
 

Board Members:          Staff Members: 

Chairman Robert Schaefer         Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro  

Member Xochitl Ross         Town Clerk Amber Brown 

Member Charles Cain         Town Attorney Ryan Knight 

Member Pete Peterson         Town Planner Corey O’Gorman 

Member James D. Simmons 

Alternate Travis Hunsucker 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

A. August 15, 2024 minutes 

  
  

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Variance Application #VV2025-0001, 1200 Orange Street 

 

5. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Appointment of the 2025 Chairperson 

B. Approval of the 2025 meeting schedule 

C. Interpretation of the Official Zoning Map 

 

6. OLD BUSINESS  
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, if an individual decides to appeal any decision made by the Board of Adjustment 

with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, a verbatim transcript of the proceedings may be required and the individual 

may need to ensure that a verbatim transcript of the proceedings is made. 

One or more Commission members may be present at this meeting. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing special accommodations 

to participate in this meeting shall, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting, contact the Office of the Town Clerk at (321) 724-5860. 

3



Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 15, 2024 

COMMUNITY CENTER, 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 

MINUTES 

 
Board Members:     Staff Members: 

Chairman Robert Schaefer   Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Vice Chair Xochitl Ross    Town Clerk Amber Brown  

Member Charles Cain     Building Official Robert Bitgood 

Member James D. Simmons   Town Planner Corey O’Gorman 

Member Peter Peterson    Town Attorney Ryan Knight 

Alternate Travis Hunsucker 

Alternate Tim Reed 
 

1. Call to Order  

 Chairman Robert Schaefer called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2. Roll Call  

 Town Clerk Amber Brown led the roll call. 

 

 Members Present:     Staff Present: 

 Chairman Robert Schaefer    Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

 Vice Chairperson Xochitl Ross    Building Official Robert Bitgood 

 Member Charles Cain     Town Clerk Amber Brown 

 Member James D. Simmons     

 Member Peter Peterson 

 Alternate Travis Hunsucker 

 Alternate Tim Reed   

   

3. Approval of Minutes  

A. January 18, 2024 draft minutes 

 

Member James Simmons moved to approve the minutes from January 18, 2024; Member Peter 

Peterson seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 

4. Public Hearing 

4



A. Coastal Construction Variance Application #PCCV24-0001, 1503 Atlantic Street Unit B 

 

Homeowner Michael Costello was present for any questions. 

 

Member Peter Peterson spoke about how the DEP permit for number 3 says the type of 

foundation is pile, but on the construction plans it does not show the pool being pile-

supported.  

 

Homeowner Michael Costello spoke about the pool being a fiberglass pool, and those are 

the plans DEP received. 

 

Building Official Robert Bitgood spoke about the pool is not on piles. 

 

The Board discussed if it gets approved it could be approved with the condition of getting 

clarification from DEP. 

 

Vice Chair Xochitl Ross asked for clarification on when the 30% pervious is required. 

 

Member James Simmons spoke about that requirement is only for new construction. 

 

Member Charles Cain spoke about the title being a generic template that includes a screen 

enclosure, but the application is not for a screen enclosure.  

 

Member James Simmons verified there is no additional lighting being installed.  

 

Member James Simmons moved to approve variance PCCV24-0001 contingent upon clarification 

from the DEP on whether pilings are required; Vice Chair Xochitl Ross seconded; Motion carried 5-0 

 

5. New Business 

 

Chairman Robert Schaefer spoke about not wanting the extra pages that are blank because 

they do not apply to this type of application. He also spoke about having the applicant’s 

responses on the pages of the application instead of on a separate page.  

 

6. Adjournment 

 

Member James Simmons moved to adjourn; Vice Chair Xochitl Ross seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 

 The meeting adjourned at 6:19 p.m. 

 

         ATTEST: 

 

________________________            __________________________        

Robert Schaefer, Chairman            Amber Brown, Town Clerk  

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



Town of Melbourne Beach 
Board of Adjustment 

Notice of Public Hearing 
 

 
February 4, 2025 
 
The Board of Adjustment will hold public hearings on Thursday, February 20, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. or as soon 
thereafter as may be convenient to the Board, in the Community Center, at 509 Ocean Avenue, Melbourne Beach, 
FL, 32951, to hear interested persons in regard to the requested variance applications: 
 
Variance Application: 1200 Orange Street 
Variance Application #VV2025-0001: This is a request for a variance from the Town of Melbourne Beach Land 
Development Code Section 7A-33(f)(7) “c” & “d” as follows: 
 
   (7)   Minimum yard requirements: 

         c.   Side corner lot setback, 25 feet from lot line. 
         d.   Rear setback, 25 feet from lot line. 

 
The variance request is to allow building expansion at the northern edge of the side of the property, to be 
located 9’10” from the northern property line and 10’8” from the rear property line. This would require a 
variance of 15’2” from the required 25’ side (corner) setback, and a variance of 14’4” from the required 
25’ rear seatback. 

                           
Property Description:  The property is legally described by the Brevard County Property Appraiser as: 
Parcel ID:  28-38-08-FY-13-11 
Legal Description:  LOT 12 AND THE EAST 30 FEET OF LOT 11, BLOCK 13, WILCOX PLAT OF 
MELBOURNE BEACH 
 

The application was submitted by Susan Tewksbury. 
 
Applications may be reviewed during normal business hours 8:30 am to 4:30 pm in the Town Clerk’s Office, 507 
Ocean Avenue, Melbourne Beach, FL.  Interested parties may be heard at the public hearing or may submit written 
comments to the Town Clerk’s Office.  This matter is subject to quasi-judicial rules of procedure.  Interested parties 
should limit contact with the Board of Adjustment on this topic to properly noticed public hearings or to written 
communication to the Town Clerk's Office. 
 
Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, the Town hereby advises the public that if a person decides to appeal 
any decision made by this Board with respect to this or any matter considered at its hearing, such person must ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which 
the appeal is to be based.  This notice does not constitute consent by the Town for the introduction or admission 
into evidence of otherwise inadmissible or irrelevant evidence, nor does it authorize challenges or appeals not 
otherwise allowed by law. 
 
The needs of a hearing or visually impaired person shall be met if the Town of Melbourne Beach is notified at least 
48 hours prior to the public hearing by any person wishing assistance. 
 
Amber Brown, Town Clerk 
Town of Melbourne Beach 
507 Ocean Avenue 
Melbourne Beach, Florida  32951 
Phone 321-724-5860 Fax 321-984-8994 

55



Board of Adjustment Meeting 

Section:   New Business     

Meeting Date:   February 20, 2025 

From:   Town Clerk Amber Brown   

RE:    Appointment of the 2025 Chairperson    

 

Background Information: 

By Town Code of Ordinances, the Board of Adjustment shall appoint a Chairperson on a yearly 

basis. 

Town Code of Ordinances Article IX. Board of Adjustment 7A-150. Establishment; Terms and 

Memberships (c) The Board of Adjustment shall appoint the Chairperson of the Board on a yearly 

basis. 

 

56



Board of Adjustment Meeting 

Section:   New Business     

Meeting Date:   February 20, 2025 

From:   Town Clerk Amber Brown   

RE:    Approval of the 2025 meeting schedule   

 

Background Information: 

Attached is the proposed 2025 meeting schedule for the Board of Adjustment. 

Consider approving the schedule. 

57



2025 

Town of Melbourne Beach 

Planning & Zoning, Commission 

Application Deadline P & Z Meeting Date Town Commission Date 
December 03, 2024 January 07, 2025 January 15, 2025 
January 07, 2025 February 04, 2025 February 19, 2025 
February 04, 2025 March 04, 2025 March 19, 2025 
March 04, 2025 April 08, 2025 April 16, 2025 
April 08, 2025 May 06, 2025 May 21, 2025 
May 06, 2025 June 03, 2025 June 18, 2025 
June 03, 2025 July 01, 2025 July 16, 2025 
July 01, 2025 August 05, 2025 August 20, 2025 
August 05, 2025 September 02, 2025 September 17, 2025 
September 02, 2025 October 07, 2025 October 15, 2025 
October 07, 2025 November 3, 2025 November 19, 2025 
November 3, 2025 December 02, 2025 December 17, 2025 
December 02, 2025 January 06, 2026 January 21, 2026 

 

Board of Adjustment Schedule 

Application Deadline Meeting Date 
 November 21, 2024  January 16, 2025 
 December 19, 2024  February 20, 2025 
 January 16, 2025  March 20, 2025 
 February 20, 2025  April 17, 2025 
 March 20, 2025  May 15, 2025 
 April 16, 2025  June 19, 2025 
 May 14, 2025  July 17, 2025 
 June 19, 2025  August 21, 2025 
 July 17, 2025  September 18, 2025 
 August 21, 2025  October 16, 2025 
 September 18, 2025  November 20, 2025 
 October 16, 2025  December 18, 2025 
 November 20, 2025  January 15, 2026 

 

58



Board of Adjustment Meeting  

Section:   New Business  

Meeting Date:  February 20, 2025 

From:   Elizabeth Mascaro, Town Manager 

Re:   Official Zoning Map Town of Melbourne Beach  

   203 Second Avenue, Melbourne Beach 

 

Background: 

I need a determination from BOA on the correct boundary for 4RM and 3RS.  I found this 

discrepancy while trying to determine if 203 Second Ave was in 3RS or 4RM.  BOA is 

responsible for interpreting boundaries.  

Town Code of Ordinances 7A-16(6)    In cases where the actual location of physical 

features varies from those shown on the official zoning map, or in other circumstances 

not covered by divisions (1) through (5) above, the Board of Adjustment shall interpret 

the district boundaries;  

On the original Wilcox Plat, 203 Second Ave is section 14, lot 8 on the south side of Second 

Avenue.  Lot 8 clearly sits behind the multi-family dwellings facing A1A. 

The Town has an Official Zoning map with a raised seal from with an original date of  9/1963, 

revised 12/1966, revised 8/1987 Resolution 395, revised 12/1997 Resolution 95-04.   This zoning 

map depicts a black boundary between 3RS and 4RM as 1 block inside the multi-family housing 

block that faces A1A.  I have maps (B-E) from 1988 that were included in our Comprehensive 

Plan that was sent to the State. It appears to be the same map, however I can’t find lot 8.  Map B 

depicts 6 blocks then the multi-family, Map C depicts 8 blocks then the multi-family, Map D depicts 

7 blocks, and Map E is illegible. 

I have zoning maps from 2012 Map F, 2014 Map G, and 2020 Map H.  These maps are in color 

and each map states it’s the Official Zoning Map.  Maps F,G and H have all been used as the 

Official Zoning maps of the Town as submitted in our Comprehensive Plans to the State. I have 

not been able to locate a map with a raised seal.  On all 3 of these maps, the delineation between 

3RS and 4RM is the first lot facing A1A, where the multi-family units are located.  On the map 

from 2014(G) there is a note at the bottom of the map that states “Map remastered by LaRue 

Planning & Mgt. Services, Inc., in February 2013.   The colored maps do not have the correct 

number of Lots either, but the color clearly shows that 203 Second Avenue is in 3RS as the first 

lot behind the multi-family units on Second Avenue. 

59



I have reviewed every Ordinance change date indicated in our Code Of Ordinances that pertains 

to zoning.  I have reviewed the minutes from P&Z, BOA and the Ordinance changes. There is 

nothing in the Code or the minutes that indicates a change in the map between 3RS and 4RM.  

In the minutes, there are several mentions of keeping the density in 3RS to medium density.  In 

Ordinance 97-02 there is reference to changing the density in 4RM and 5RMO from 10 units to 6 

units.  Currently 4RM allows up to 6 units.  I do not know why the Town would allow multi-family 

zoning in the second parcel behind the existing multi-family. The 4RM lots are all oversize and 

appear to be double lots. The second lots in from the multi-family currently have single-family 

homes on them. 

 

Recommendation:  

Make a determination on where the delineation is between 4RM and 3RS. 

Once BOA has made a determination, a new map will be drawn, to scale, sealed and signed as 

the Official Zoning Map of Melbourne Beach. 

 

 

 

 

Attachments:   

Letter from Town Planner regarding zoning location of 203 Second Avenue (2 pgs) 

Wilcox Map 

Zoning Maps B-H 

Sealed Zoning Map from 1997 

60



§ 7A-16. RULES OF INTERPRETATION OF DISTRICT BOUNDARIES.

   Where uncertainty exists as to the boundaries of districts as shown on the official zoning map, the following rules shall
apply:

   (1)   Boundaries indicated as approximately following the center lines of streets, highways, or alleys shall be construed to
follow such center lines;

   (2)   Boundaries indicated as approximately following platted lot lines shall be construed as following such lot lines;

   (3)   Boundaries indicated as approximately following Town limits shall be construed as following Town limits;

   (4)   Boundaries indicated as approximately following the center lines of streams, rivers, canals, lakes, or other bodies of
water shall be construed to follow such center lines;

   (5)   Boundaries indicated as parallel to or extensions of features indicated in divisions (1) through (4) above shall be so
construed. Distances not specifically indicated on the official zoning map shall be determined by the scale of the map;

   (6)   In cases where the actual location of physical features varies from those shown on the official zoning map, or in other
circumstances not covered by divisions (1) through (5) above, the Board of Adjustment shall interpret the district boundaries;
and

   (7)   Where a district boundary divides a lot which was in single ownership on September 26, 1972, the Board of
Adjustment may permit, as a special exception, the extension of the regulations for either portion of the lot not to exceed 30
feet beyond the district line into the remaining portion of the lot.

(`75 Code, Appendix A, Art. III, § 3) (Ord. 85-7, passed 11-12-85; Am. Ord. 2017-05, adopted 12-20-17)

61



Project Management • Development Services • Community Redevelopment 

January 31, 2025 

Elizabeth Mascaro, Manager 
Town of Melbourne Beach 
507 Ocean Avenue 
Melbourne Beach, FL 32951-2523 

RE: Zoning Verification 
203 Second Avenue, Melbourne Beach, Florida 

Dear Elizabeth, 

I have reviewed the property and zoning information for the subject property and offer 
the following: 

• Address: 203 Second Avenue, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

• Parcel ID: 28-38-08-FY-14-8, see attached Property Appraiser Information
and Map.

• Zoning: 3RS, see attached zoning map.

Please let me know if you have any questions.  THANKS! 

Sincerely, 

Corey W. O’Gorman, AICP 
President 

/co 

Attachments 

700 US Highway One, Suite C 
North Palm Beach, FL 33408 
561-863-2722 

62



Dana Blickley, CFA, Brevard County Property Appraiser
Titusville • Viera • Melbourne • Palm Bay

 
REAL PROPERTY DETAILS

Account 2847857 - Roll Year 2024

(321) 264-6700

www.BCPAO.us

Disclaimer

Owners DAVENPORT FLORIDA IRREVOCABLE TRUST

Mailing Address 555 HUDSON VALLEY AVE, STE 100 NEW WINDSOR NY 
12553

Site Address 203 SECOND AVE MELBOURNE BEACH FL 32951
Parcel ID 28-38-08-FY-14-8
Taxing District 34X0 - MELBOURNE BEACH
Exemptions NONE
Property Use 0110 - SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE
Total Acres 0.31
Site Code 0001 - NO OTHER CODE APPL.
Plat Book/Page 0001/0058
Subdivision WILCOX MELBOURNE BEACH

Land Description WILCOX MELBOURNE BEACH LOT 8 & W 30 FT OF LOTS 
9,10 & 11 BLK 14

VALUE SUMMARY
Category 2024 2023 2022
Market Value $551,200 $535,560 $513,090
Agricultural Land Value $0 $0 $0
Assessed Value Non-School $452,610 $411,470 $374,070
Assessed Value School $551,200 $535,560 $513,090
Homestead Exemption $0 $0 $0
Additional Homestead $0 $0 $0
Other Exemptions $0 $0 $0
Taxable Value Non-School $452,610 $411,470 $374,070
Taxable Value School $551,200 $535,560 $513,090

SALES / TRANSFERS
Date Price Type Instrument
01/19/2016 $106,200 WD 7551/1749
07/31/2007 $300,000 WD 5806/1757
02/28/1999 $95,000 WD 3972/0509
06/01/1986 -- NN 2705/1048
05/01/1976 -- -- 1619/0058
04/01/1976 -- QC 1617/0092

BUILDINGS

PROPERTY DATA CARD #1

Building Use: 0110 - SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE
Materials

Exterior Wall: PLYWD/T111
Frame: WOOD FRAME
Roof: ASPH/ASB SHNGL
Roof Structure: HIP/GABLE

Details
Year Built 1976
Story Height 8
Floors 1
Residential Units 1
Commercial Units 0

Sub-Areas
Base Area (1st) 1,265
Garage 350
Screen Porch 220
Total Base Area 1,265
Total Sub Area 1,835

Extra Features
No Data Found

Page 1 of 1https://www.bcpao.us/docs/print/2847857Generated 1/31/2025 1:18:45 PM

63

https://www.bcpao.us/ContactUs.aspx?t=1.3
https://www.bcpao.us/ContactUs.aspx?t=1.3
https://www.bcpao.us/ContactUs.aspx?t=1.3
https://www.bcpao.us/ContactUs.aspx?t=1.3
https://www.bcpao.us
https://www.bcpao.us/Docs/Misc/BCPAO_Website_Disclaimer.pdf


0 60 12030 ft

0 10 205 m

1:1,000

All BCPAO maps and/or map applications are maintained for assessment and illustrative purposes only and do not represent surveys, plats, or any other legal instrument. Likewise, measurement and location tools are for assessment and illustrative purposes
only and do not necessarily reflect real-world conditions. Due to the nature of Geographic Information Systems (GIS) and cadastral mapping, map layers may not precisely align and may not represent precise location, shape, and/or legal boundaries. Only a 
Florida-licensed surveyor can determine legally-relevant property boundaries, elevation, distance, area, and/or location in Florida.
Map created January 31, 2025 (map data dates may vary)

µ
64



PIN
E

SIXTH

FIRST

SURF

THIRD

ATLANTIC

OAK

OCEAN

HIBISCUS

FOURTH

SECOND

SUNSET

AVENUE A

BANYAN

AVENUE B

RIVERSIDE

ASH

SH
AN

NO
N

FIFTH

CHERRY

OR
AN

GE

ELM

BIRCH

FIR

ANDREWS

A1A

MAGNOLIA

SOUTH RIVER

RIVERVIEW

REDWOODNEPTUNE ROSEWOOD

DOLPHIN

BONITA

SO
UT

H 
PA

LM

CO
LO

NY

MA
NG

O

POINSETTIA

DOGWOOD

CI
TR

US

CEDAR

BA
RR

AC
UD

A

CORAL

JA
SM

IN
E

DRIFTWOOD

ALDEN

RIVER

FL
AM

IN
GO

ANCHOR KEY

SA
ND

Y K
EY

BEAU JEAN

PELICAN KEY

RIVERSIDE

ORANGE

PIN
E

POINSETTIA

OA
K

ATLANTIC

OAK

FIFTH

ATLANTIC

ATLANTIC

MAGNOLIA

Town of Melbourne Beach
Official Zoning Map

1,200 0 1,200600 Feet

¯
ZONING

3RS - Single-Family
4RM - Multi-Family
5RMO - Oceanfront Multi-Family
6B - Downtown Bus. District
7C - Gen. Commercial District
8B - Res. -- Commercial District
9I - Institutional District

1RS-Single-Family
2RS - Single-Family

May 31, 2012

65

Corey O'Gorman
Rectangle

Corey O'Gorman
Callout
Subject Site

Corey O'Gorman
Rectangle



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74


	1 Agenda Packet Cover Page.pdf (p.1)
	2 Table of Contents.pdf (p.2)
	250220 BOA Agenda.pdf (p.3)
	240815 BOA Draft Minutes.pdf (p.4-5)
	4 A 1  1200 Orange Variance with plans.pdf (p.6-59)
	4 A 2 Notice of Public Hearing - 1200 Orange St.pdf (p.60)
	BOA Appointment of Chairperson.pdf (p.61)
	BOA Approval of the Meeting Schedule.pdf (p.62)
	2025 PNZ and BOA Schedule.pdf (p.63)
	5 C 1 BOA Zoing Determiniation Request.pdf (p.64-65)
	5 C 2 BOA 7a-16 Town Code of Ordinances.pdf (p.66)
	5 C 3BOA 203 Second Aven - Zoning Verification.pdf (p.67-70)
	5 C 4 Maps A-H.pdf (p.71-78)
	5 C 4 BOA-ZOING MAP 1966.pdf (p.79)

